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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor ’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I.  As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2019.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/ W-100022

_’9\’/

.

Nirav Patel
Place: Pune Partner
Date: July 17, 2019 Membership No: 113327

UDIN - 19113327AAAAAXS5899
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report —31 March 2019

With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Ind
AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which its fixed

assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
fixed assets. The discrepancies noticed on such verification between the physical count and the book
records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us including

the registered title deeds, we report that, the Company does not hold any freehold land. In respect of
immovable properties of land and buildings that have been taken on lease and disclosed as property,
plant and equipment in the Ind AS financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

The inventory, except goods in transit, has been physically verified by management during the year.
The discrepancies noticed on such verification between the physical stock and the book records were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the frequency
of such verification is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature
of its business. In respect of stocks lying with third parties at the year end, written confirmations from
major parties have been obtained.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has neither granted any
loan and nor made any investments, or guarantees or security during the year, to which section 185
of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable. According to the information and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with
the provision of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and investment made
and guarantees and security provided.
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2019 (continued)

v)

(vi)

The Company has not accepted any deposits in accordance with the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the rules made there under. Accordingly paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Act,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records, with a view to
determine whatever they are accurate or complete.

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Duty of Customs,
Goods and Service Tax, and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities, except in connection with certain
employee related dues as more fully described in note 38 to the financial statements. As explained to
us, the Company does not have dues on account of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax and
Duty of Excise. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Duty of Customs,
Goods and Service Tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except in connection with certain
employee related dues as more fully described in note 38 to the financial statements.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues of Income tax, Sales Tax,
Duty of Excise, Duty of Customs, Service tax, Value added tax and Goods and Services Tax which have
not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes other than those stated below:

Amount Paid under
Nature of disputed rotest Period to which the | Forum where dispute is
Name of the Statute the dues (Rs. In I(’Rs. In amount relates** pending
million) million)
Finance Act ,1994 Service Tax 0.04 - FY 2012-2015 Assistant  Commissioner
of Central Excise Audit - |
Pune Commissionerate
Finance Act ,1994 Service Tax 0.07 - FY 2015-2017 Assistant  Commissioner
of Central tax Pune - 1
Commissionerate
The Maharashtra Value | Value added 2.04 - FY 2014-15 The Commissioner,
Added Tax, 2002 tax Appeals, Bangalore.
The Maharashira Value | Value added 0.49 - FY 2016-17 The Commissioner,
Added Tax, 2002 tax Appeals, Cochin
The Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 3.16 3.16 # AY 2011-12** Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Pune
The Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 5.78 578 # AY 2012-13 & AY | Income tax Appellate
2013-14 Tribunal, Pune
The Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2.82 2.82# AY 2014-15 & AY | Commissioner of Income
2016-17 Tax (Appeals)

* AY stands for Assessment Year & FY stands {or Financial Year.
** [ncome tax department are in appeal against the favourable order of Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).
# Paid by way of adjustment against income tax refund / minimum alternate tax credit entitlement / carry forward losses / in

cash
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report —31 March 2019 (continued)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to its bankers or financial institution. The Company did not have any
dues to any Government or any outstanding debentures during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken
by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised. The Company has
not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instances of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration is paid or
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2004 are not applicable to it, the
provision of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details, as required by
the applicable accounting standards have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them during the year. Accordingly
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company
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Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2019 (continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2019 (continued)

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to register under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xvi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

9\)%
% 5
Nirav Patel
Place: Pune Partner
Date: July 17, 2019 Membership No. 113327

UDIN - 19113327AAAAAX5899
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of Gennova
Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the period ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Gennova
Biopharmaceuticals Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

10
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the standalone financial statements of Gennova
Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the period ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Finaneial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/ W-100022

,')\)/

Nirav Patel
Place: Pune Partner
Date: July 17,2019 Membership No: 113327

UDIN - 19113327AAAAAXS5899
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

Rs. In millions
Particulars Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 752.01 802.09
Capital work-in-progress 4 33.99 -
Intangible assets 5 2.75 3.66
intangible assets under development 4 26.14 -
Financial assets
i) Investments 6 0.00 0.00
ii) Loans 7 47.80 4731
iii) Others 8 2.20 1.54
Deferred tax assets (net) 36 222.20 221.20
Current tax assets (net) 37 - 2.30
Other non current assets 9 2.17 16.29
Total non current assets 1,089.26 1,094.39
Current assets
Inventories 10 349.73 361.21
Financial assets
i) Trade receivables 11 163.62 143.75
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 169.18 23.33
iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 13 6.57 4.45
iv) Others 14 0.43 0.39
Other current assets 15 64.58 66.86
Total current assets 754.11 599.99
Total assets 1,843.37 1,694.38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 55.11 55.11
Other equity 17 803.18 623.43
Equity component of compound financial instrument 217.62 217.62
Reserves and surplus 585.56 405.81
Total equity 858.29 678.54
Non-controlling interests 16
LIABILITIES
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 18 520.25 619.48
i} Others 19 10.97 14.73
Provisions 20 38.54 33.28
Other non current liabilities 21 6.37 -
Total non current liabilities 576.13 667.49
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings 22 - 0.71
ii) Trade payables 23
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.74 =
Total outstanding dues to others 109.40 129.69
iii) Others 24 233.25 130.39
Provisions 25 40.16 47.74
Other current liabilities 26 18.08 27.01
Current tax liabilities (net) 37 7.32 12.81
Total current liabilities 408.95 348.35
Total liabilities 985.08 1,015.84
Total equity and liabilities 1,843.37 1,694.38

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022
Chartered Accountants

)\"7/

. >

Nirav Patel
Partner
Membership No. 113327

Place: Pune
Date: July 17, 2019
UDIN number : 19113327AAAAAX5899

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement.

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Pune

Date: July 17, 2019

r. Sanjay Singh

Whole Time Director & CEO
DIN : 01693705

AEA

Membership No. A35340
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in millions

Particulars Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Revenue:
Revenue from operations 27 1,815.20 1,724.98
Other income 28 11.94 9.49
Total revenue 1,827.14 1,734.47
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 29 136.47 161.89
Purchases of stock-in-trade 210.18 156.50
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 30 14.28 29.74
Excise duty 8 13.77
Employee benefit expenses 31 326.20 343.39
Other expenses 32 693.87 650.71
Depreciation and amortization expense 33 130.30 128.32
Finance cost 34 72.43 101.16
Total expenses 1,583.73 1,585.48
Profit before tax 243.41 148.99
Tax expense 35
Current tax 64.76 45,61
Deferred tax (1.01) (47.05)
Profit for the year 179.66 150.43
Other comprehensive income / (expenses) (OCl)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations {0.05} 2.55
Income tax relating to these items - {0.89)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss {0.05) 1.66
Total comprehensive income for the year 179.61 152.09
Earnings per share:
Basic 42 32.60 27.29
Diluted 42 12.33 10.43
[Face value per share: Rs. 10 (March 31, 2018 : Rs.10}]

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement.
As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022
Chartered Accountants

AW

Nirav Patel
Partner
Membership No. 113327

Place: Pune
Date: July 17, 2019
UDIN number : 19113327AAAAAX5899

/ uddip Shaildh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

31PN2001PLCO16253

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Pune
Date: July 17, 2019

Dr. Sanjay Singh
Whole Time Director & CEO
DIN : 01693705

Company Secretary
Membership No. A35340
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

Chartered Accountants

KV 4
~ e

Nirav Patel
Partner
Membership No. 113327

Place: Pune
Date: July 17, 2019
UDIN number : 19113327AAAAAX5899

igh Mehta
Chajrman
DIN : 00118691

===
Eﬂudd] .
=Chief Financial Officer

Place: Pune
Date: July 17, 2019

Equity share capital Notes Rs. in millions
As at April 1, 2017 55.11
Changes in equity share capital 16 >
As at March 31, 2018 55.11
Changes in equity share capital 16 =
As at March 31, 2019 55.11

Rs. in millions

Notes | Equity component of Reserves and surplus Total
Other equity compound financial | Retained earning | Other reserves
instrument
As at April 1, 2017 217.62 248.35 4,92 470.89
Profit for the year - 150.43 - 150.43
OCl impact of Defined benefit plan
Issue of share options to employees of the Company 17 = 0.45 0.45
Items of other comprehensive income recognised - 1.66 - : 1.66
directly in retained earnings
As at March 31, 2018 217.62 400.44 5.37 623.43
Profit for the year - 179.66 - 179.66
OCt impact of Defined benefit plan
Issue of share options to employees of the Company 17 - 0.14 0.14
Items of other comprehensive income recognised - (0.05) = (0.05)
directly in retained earnings
As at March 31, 2019 217.62 580.05 5.51 803.18
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement.
As per our report of even date attached.
ForBSR & Co. LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors y
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022 -U! 1PN2001PLC016253
-

)

LY

it
Dr. Sanjay Singh
Whole Time Director & CEO

Rutyja Gohad
Company Secretary
Membership No. A35340
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in millions

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before taxation 243.41 148.99
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 130.30 128.32
Employee share-based payment 0.14 0.45
Finance costs 20.31 39.91
Provision for doubtful debts 4.06 -
Interest on liability component of compound financial instrument 36.48 33.32
Change in fair value of financial guarantee 4.92 17.03
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.10 1.49
Interest income from banks and others (0.84) (2.27)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits (4.21) (3.76)
434.67 363.48
Working capital adjustments:
- (Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (23.93) {17.98)
- Decrease/(increase) in inventories 11.48 49.16
- {Increase) in other assets 2.27 (28.49)
- (Increase) in other financial assets 3.72 (4.20)
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (19.00) 49.17
- Increase/{decrease) in other financial liabilities {4.13) 2.42
- Decrease in other liabilities (2.56) (15.02)
- Increase/{decrease) in provisions (2.37) 3.05
Cash generated from operating activities 400.15 401.59
Income taxes paid (net of refund) (67.95) (26.16)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 332.20 375.43
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (102.04) (88.82)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.01 0.25
Interest received 0.81 2.24
Term deposits with banks (net) (0.65) (0.32
Net cash (outflow) investing activities (B) (101.87) {86.65)
Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from secured borrowings 31.22 25.24
Repayment of secured borrowings {68.95) (62.06)
Repayment of unsecured borrowings (18.41) (18.41)
Interest paid (18.86) (35.03)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities (C) (75.00) {90.26)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 155.33 198.52
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year (Refer below) 22.62 (175.90)
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year (Refer below) 177.95 22.62
Rs. in millians
Components of cash and cash equivalent March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash on hand 0.04 0.19
Balances with banks 8.77 -
Balances with bank in current accounts 169.14 23.14
Cash credit facilities repayable on demand from banks - (0.71)
Total cash and cash equivalent* 177.95 22.62

*Cash and cash equivalent includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019 (continued)

Rs. in millions

Changes In liabilities arising from financing activities March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Long term borrowings:

Opening balance 308.63 358.71
Amount borrowed during the year 31.22 25.24
Amount repaid during the year (87.37) (80.47)
Amortised cost adjustment 4.92 5.14
Closing balance 257.40 308.62
Finance cost:

Opening balance 21.07 21.34
Finance cost during the year 20.31 39.91
Amount paid during the year (18.86) (35.03)
Amortised cost adjustment (6.11) (5.14)
Closing balance 16.41 21.07

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement.

As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022
Chartered Accountants

;’\‘7

Nirav Patel
Partner
Membership No. 113327

Place: Pune
Date: July 17, 2019

UDIN number : 19113327AAAAAX5899

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
-U24231PN2001PLCO16253

W
-~ M
ehta Dr. Sanjay Singh

Whole Time Director & CEO
DIN : 01693705

Chief Finanpial Officer

Company Secretary
Membership No. A35340
Place: Pune

Date: July 17, 2019
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2019

1A. General information:

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited (the "Company") is a research-based biotech pharmaceutical Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in
India. The Company is presently catering to the domestic as well as export markets and has one plant located in India.

1B. Basis of preparation
a) Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on July 17, 2019.
Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 1C.

b) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All the amounts disclosed in the financial
statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

c) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the following items:

Items Measurement

Certain Financial assets and fiabilities Fair value

Equity settled share based payment arrangements Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset} / liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

d) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimations uncertainties that have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2019 is
included in following notes:

Note 1C. c) & d) Useful lives of property, plant, equipment and intangibles;
Note 38 & 49 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

Note 36 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax credit can be used;
Note 44 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

e) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a team that has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Head of Treasury .

The team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is
used to measure fair values, then the team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Measurement of fair values (Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 53 — financial instruments;
- Note 43 —share-based payment arrangements; and

f) Current versus non current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;

- itis held for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets / non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
- the Company does not have any unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current liabilities / non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalent. The operating cycle of the
Company is less than 12 months.
1C. Significant accounting policies

a) Foreign Currency Translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into functional currency at exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the

date of transaction, exchange difference are recognised in statement of profit and loss.
b) Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset o financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost; or
- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

18



GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business mode! for managing
financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:
- The stated policy and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.

These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the
duration of the financial asset to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of asset;

- How the performance of portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
- The risk that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- How managers of business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows

collected; and
- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the
Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defines as the fair value of financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for time
value of money and for credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and other basic leading risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- term that would adjust the contractual rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- term that limits the Company’s claim to cash flows for specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amount of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired on a significant premium or discount to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or require prepayment at
an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is significant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

19



GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Financial assets: Business model assessment (Continued)
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either alf or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this
case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

c} Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimate costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separated items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to Company.

iii, Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the

straight line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed under Schedule Il to the
Companies Act 2013 except in case of:

- Furniture and fixtures at leasehold premises that are deoreciated over the lease period.

- Vehicles are depreciated over 5 years, as per techinical evaluation.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate, Based on technical evaluation and
consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets.

Depreciation on additions {disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from {up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended March 31, 2019

Financial liabilities {Continued)

d) Intangible assets

i. Initial recognition:

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to Company.

iii. Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives using straight line
method, as is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Intangible Asset v nent estimated useful life
Software, license rights 2 to 10 years

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

iv. Intangible Assets under Development
Intangible assets under development are initially recognized cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently capitalized only if it is probable that the future

economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to Company.

e} Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost on inventories is based on weighted average formula, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present location and
condition. In case of manufactured inventory and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expense.
The net realisable value of work-in- progress is determined with reference to the selling price of related finished products.

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in production of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where material
price have declined and it is estimated that the cost of finished products will exceed their net realizable value.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

The Company considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventory, product discontinuation, price changes and any other factor which impact the
Company'’s business in determining the allowance for obsolete, non-saleable and slow moving inventories. The Company considers the above factors and
adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis.

) Impairment

i. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows of financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observed data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being overdue for a period of more than 12 months from the credit term offered to the customer;
- the restructuring of loan or advance by the Company on the terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that borrower will enter bankruptcy or the financial reorganization;

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Company
follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.
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impairment of financial instruments (Continued)
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial

assets if at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since its original recognition. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

While determining whether the credit risk of financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the
Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost of effort. This includes both quantitate and
qualitative information and analysis based on Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward - looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers financial asset to be in default when:
a. The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to action such as realising security (if any is

held); or
b. The financial asset is 90 days or more past due.
Measurement of expected credit loss

Expected credit loss are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance of expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write — off

The Gross carrying amount of financial asset is written off (either partially of full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when Company determines that the debtor does not have asset or source of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount
subject to write-off. However, financial assets that are written-off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial asset

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined
for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. An impairment loss on goodwill is not
subsequently reversed.

g) Employee benefits

i. Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.
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Employee benefits {Continued)

ii. Share-based payment transactions
Share-based payment are provided to employees via the Parent Company's Employees Stock Option Plan ("Emcure ESOS 2013")

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the Company is recognised as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is
based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

iii. Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund
scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss in the periods
during which the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

iv. Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results
is a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefit available in the form of any future refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is
given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCl. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-
net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and
benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past
service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss. The Company recognises gain and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

v. Other long term employee benefit

The Company's liability in respect of other long-term employee benefits (compensated absences) is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The cbligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method. Remeasurement gains
or losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

h) Provisions (other than for employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax-rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

i. Sales returns and breakage expiry
When a customer has a right to return the product within a given period, the Company has recognised a provision for returns. The provision is measured equal

to the value of the sales expected to return in the future period. Revenue is adjusted for the expected value of the returns and cost of sales are adjusted for the
value of the corresponding goods to be returned.

The Company has an obligation to replace the goods which will expire. The Company has recognised a provision for the returns due to expiry. The provision is
measured on the basis of historical trend of expiry against the sales occurred in the current and earlier period. Management considers the sales value for the
periods which are equivalent to average general shelf life of products. Revenue is adjusted for the expected value of the returns.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Provisions (other than for employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

ii. Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigations, assessments, fines, penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

iii. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the
possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognized
in the period in which the change occurs. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

i) Revenue
Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade
discounts and volume rebates. This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit
terms. Revenue is recognised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of goods have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is
probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control over, or managerial involvement
with, the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The timing of transfers of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of sale.

Rendering of services (other than sale of technology / know-how, rights, licenses and other intangibles)

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in statement of profit and loss by reference to percentage completion method. The Company is involved in
rendering services related to its products to its customers. If the services under a single arrangement are rendered in different reporting periods, then the
consideration is allocated on a relative fair value basis between the different services.

j) Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company will
comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they are then recognised in profit or loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis in the periods in
which such expenses are recognised.

k) Leases

i. Assets held under leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The
leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to

initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to similar owned assets.

Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership (i.e. operating leases) are not recognised in

the Company’s Balance Sheet.

ii. Lease Payments

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless such
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance

charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on remaining balance of the liability.

1) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expenses
Interest income is recognised using effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of financial instrument to:

- The gross carrying amount of the financial assets; or
- The amortised cost of the financial liability.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expenses (Continued)

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no fonger credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

m) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss of the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise
the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of
unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a
deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will
be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and
are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

n) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

o) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial assets at the time the guarantee is received. The asset is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where
appropriate.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables are received for no compensation, the Company has made accounting policy choice of
recognising fair value of such financial guarantee as finance cost.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expenses (Continued)
q) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company are identified as Chief operating decision maker. Refer note 45 for segment information.

r) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / {loss) after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / {loss) after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted
average number of equity and equivalent dilutive equity shares outstanding during the reporting period, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

s) Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (‘EBITDA’) presentation

The Company presents EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. EBITDA is calculated as the profit for the year before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and is presented consistently over the periods.

t) Cash flow statement

Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

u) Research and development

Revenue expenditure on research and development activities is recognized as expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Note 2. Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective :

In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2019, notifying following new Ind
AS and amendments to Ind AS' which the Company has not applied as they are effective from 01 April 2019:

The amendments are applicable to the Company from 1 April 2019.
Ind AS - 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard also contains
enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 Aprit 19. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this amendment on the financial
statements.

Ind AS 12 Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments}

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company does not
expect any impact from this pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the entity pays a tax on dividend
which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders. Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues
to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in accordance with Ind AS 12.

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the entity has
to use judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together. The decision
should be based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resolution of the uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the taxation authority
will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority
accepting the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates would depend
upon the probability. The Company does not expect any significant impact of the amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or,
depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Company
does not expect this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements.
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Standards issued but not yet effective : {Continued)
Ind AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current service cost and the net interest for the
period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify
the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The Company does not expect this amendment to
have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 23 — Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes
part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The Company does not expect any impact
from this amendment.

Ind AS 28 — Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied. The Company does not currently have any long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures and hence does not expect any impact from this amendment.

Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations and Ind AS 111 — Joint Arrangements

The amendments to Ind AS 103 relating to re-measurement clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it re-measures
previously held interests in that business. The amendments to Ind AS 111 clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation,
the entity does not re-measure previously held interests in that business. The Company does not have control / joint control / joint control of a business that is
a joint operation and hence does not expect any impact from this amendment.
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements {continued}
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in millions

Note 6

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Non current investments
Investment in equity instruments
Unquoted (Valued at cost unless otherwise stated)
Investments in Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda
1 (March 31, 2018 : 1), fully paid equity shares of Real 1 each 0.00 0.00
Total - Aggregate of unquoted investments 0.00 0.00
Rs. In millions
[NotelZ March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Loans
Unsecured , considered good
Security deposits 47.80 47.31
Total 47.80 47.31
Rs. in millions
Note 8

Other financial assets

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Unsecured considered good

Term deposits with banks for remaining maturity period more than 12 months (Refer Note 2.20 1.54
below}
Total 2.20 1.54
Note : Held as lien by bank for issuing performance bank guarantees.
Rs. in millions
T March 31,2019 | March31,2018
Other non current assets
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified:
Capital advances 217 16.29
Total 217 16.29
Rs. in millions
T March 31,2019 | March31,2018
Inventories
Raw materials 58.25 43,48
Packing materials 27.70 22.98
Work-in-progress 69.99 38.09
Finished goods 123.61 157.02
Traded goods [Includes in transit Rs. 0.38 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs. NIL )] 61.57 74.34
Stores and Spares 8.61 25.30
Total 349.73 361,21

Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

1. Write-downs of inventories during the year amounted to Rs. 0.46 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 4.15 millions). These were recognised as
an expense during the year and included in cost of materials consumed or changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and

traded goods in statement of profit and loss.

2. Inventories are hypothecated as security against the long term and short term borrowings outstanding as at year end and previous

period (Refer Note 41).

30




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in millions

Notell March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Trade receivables
Current trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 163.62 143.75
Trade receivables - credit impaired 10.28 6.22
173.90 149.97
Less: Loss allowance (10.28) (6.22)
Total 163.62 143.75

For terms and conditions of trade receivables owing from related parties, Refer Note 50.
For receivables secured against borrowings, Refer Note 41.

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 52.

Rs, in millions
Note 12 ) March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 0.04 0.19
Balances with bank 169.14 23.14
Total 169.18 23.33
: Rs. in millions
hotels ) March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Unsecured considered good
Term deposits with banks for initial maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months 6.57 4.45
(Refer Note below)
Total 6.57 4.45
Note : Held as lien by bank for issuing performance bank guarantees.
Rs. in millions
potery March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Other current financial assets
Unsecured considered good
Interest accrued on deposits with bank 0.39 0.37
Interest accrued on deposits with others 0.04 0.02
Total 0.43 0.39
Rs. in millions
[Notef1> March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Other current assets
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified
Advances for supply of goods and services 3.18 4.98
Balances with government authorities 53.78 52.39
Advance to employees 1.34 1.38
Prepaid expenses 6.28 8.11
Total 64.58 66.86
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in millions

Note 16 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Share capital Nos Amount Nos Amount
Authorised
Equity share of Rs. 10 each {March 31, 2018 : Rs. 10 each) 10,000,000 100.00 10,000,000 100.00
Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 55,000,000 550.00 55,000,000 550.00
each {March 31, 2018 : Rs. 10 each)
Total 65,000,000 650.00 65,000,000 650.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity share of Rs. 10 each (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 10 each) 5,511,365 55.11 5,511,365 55.11
Total 5,511,365 55.11 5,511,365 55.11

Note: 55,000,000 optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each are classified as compound financial instrument, the
liability component of the same is as shown as financial liability (Refer Note 18) and equity component is disclosed in other equity (Refer

Statement of Change in equity).

Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Rs. in millions

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Nos Value Nos Value
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 5,511,365 55.11 5,511,365 55,11
year
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of

Share held by Holding Company and subsidiary of Holding

Company held Shareholding held Shareholding |
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Equity Shares
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, the Holding Company 4,847,500 87.95% 4,847,500 87.95%
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of

Shareholders Holding shares more than 5% held Shareholding held Shareholding
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Equity Shares
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, the Holding Company 4,847,500 87.95% 4,847,500 87.95%
Dr. Sanjay Singh 661,365 12.00% 661,365 12.00%
Total 5,508,865 99.95% 5,508,865 99.95%

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
The Company has only one class of optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (OCRPS) having a par value of Rs.10 per share and
maximum tenure of 10-12 years, convertible in the ratio of 1 equity share for every 5 OCRPS.
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2019
Rs. in millions

Nosg 17 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Reserves and surplus

Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the year 400.44 248.35
Profit for the year 179.66 150.43
Items of other comprehenslve income recognlised directly in retained earnings

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax (0.05) 1.66
Balance as at the end of the year 580.05 400.44
Equity contribution from Holding Company

Surplus in statement of profit and loss 5.37 4.92
Issue of share options to employees of the Company 0.14 0.45
Balance as at the end of the year 5.51 5.37
Total 585.56 405.81

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits earned till date, less any transfers to other reserves and dividends distributed.

Equity contribution from Holding Company
Equity contribution from Holding Company in the nature of employee stock option issued to employees.

33




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Rs. in millions

N March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Non current borrowings
Secured
Term loans:
Loan from banks 114.14 142.72
Loan from others . 8.13
Vehicle loans 3.36 4,39
Total secured 117.50 155.24
Unsecured
Loan from others 139.90 153.39
Liability component of compound financial instrument 412.58 376.09
Total unsecured 552.48 529.48
Less: Current maturities of term loans (Refer Note 24) {73.61) (63.91)
Less: Current maturities of vehicle loans (Refer Note 24) (1.11) (1.33)
Less: Current Liability component of compound financial instrument (Refer Note 24) (75.01) B
Total 520.25 619.48
Rs. in millions
Movement of liability component of compound financial instrument March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Face value of preference shares issued 550.00 550.00
Equity component of optionally convertible preference shares - value of conversion rights (217.62) (217.62)
Deferred Tax on optionally convertible preference shares (114.90) {114.90)
Interest accrued at the beginning of the year 158.61 125.29
Interest expense for the year 36.49 33.32
Total 412.58 376.09
a) Statement of principal terms of secured term loans outstanding as on March 31, 2019 :
Nature of facility Repayment terms Rate of interest Currency Amount Security
% (per annum) outstanding
(Rs. in millions)
Term Loan 47 equal monthly installments of Rs. 4.6 Pari passu charge over the
mleIions starting from Febryary 1, 2018, and MCLR + 1.15% INR 114.14 fixed and movable assets &
1 installment of Rs. 3.8 millions from January Corporate  guarantee  of
1, 2022 Emcure
Vehicle loans Monthly installments starting from October Vehicles for which loan is
7.87% to 8.36% .
2017 and ending on March 2021 B7% to 8.36% INR 336 [ aken
Total 117.50
b} Terms of repayment for unsecured borrowings outstanding as on March 31, 2019
Nature of Facility Repayment Terms Rate of interest % Currency Amount
{per annum) outstanding
(Rs. in Millions)
Loan under New Millennium|10 yearly installments starting from August 1, 2017
Indian Technology Leadership 3% INR 139.90
Initiative
iabili [|Singl t at the end of the t ie.) 31, 2020
Liability . com.po.nent of|Single repayment at the end of the term i.e. January 9.02% INR 93.04
compound financial instrument
Liabilit Singl t at th d of the t i.e. March 28, 2022
iability .com-po-nent of|Single repayment at the end of the term i.e. Marc| 10.35% INR 11172
compound financial instrument
Liabilit f|Singl t at the end of the t i.e. March 24, 2023
iability - com-porlent of|Single repayment at the end of the term i.e. Marc| 9.66% INR 207.82
compound financial instrument
Total 552.48

().
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Rs. in millions

Rt 17 N March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Other non current financial liabilities
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10.97 14.73
Total 10.97 14.73
Rs. in millions
lote 20 » March31,2019 | March 31,2018
Non current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 44) 16.46 13.75
Other provisions
Provision for sales returns and breakage expiry (Refer Note 49) 22.08 19.53
Total 38.54 33.28
Rs. in millions
Note 21 Ju= - March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Other non current liabilities
Deferred government grant (Refer Note 39 and 47) 6.37 E
Total 6.37 -
Rs. in millions
lotel22 i March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Current borrowings
Secured
Cash credit facilities repayable on demand from banks - 0.71
Total - 0.71

Working capital loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of inventories and trade receivables.

Information about the Company'’s exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks is included in Note 52.

The working capital facilities are renewable within a year from date of sanction/previous renewal and carry interest of 9.80% to 9.85%.

Rs. in milllons
iRz March31,2019 | March 31,2018
Trade payables
Payables to related parties (Refer Note 50) 0.67 0.82
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 46) 0.74 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises 108.73 128.87
Total 110.14 129.69

All trade payable are current.

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 52.
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Rs. in millions

Note 24
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Other current financial liabllities
Current maturities of term loans (Refer Note 18) 73.61 63.91
Current maturities of vehicle loans (Refer Note 18) 1.11 1.33
Current Liability component of compound financial instrument (Refer Note 18) 75.01 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 5.45 6.35
Employee benefits payable 47.06 51.59
Commission payable to non-whole time directors 1.20 0.80
Creditors for capital assets 29.81 6.41
Total 233.25 130.39

Note a : There is no amount due and outstanding as on March 31, 2019 to be credited to Investor's Education and Protection Fund.

Note b : The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to above financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 52.

Rs. in millions

Al March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 44) 3.70 4.10

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 44) 4.97 10.04
Other provisions

Provision for sales returns and breakage expiry (Refer Note 49) 31.49 33.60
Total 40.16 47.74

Rs. in millions

Note 26 e March 31,2018 | March 31,2018
Other current liabilities

Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 8.40 10.30

Advances from customers 9.68 16.71
Total 18.08 27.01
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Rs. In millions

Note 27
Revenue from operations

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Sale of products (including excise duty) 1,769.16 1,661.15
Sale of services 43.50 42.68
Other operating revenues
Export incentives 2.46 3.27
Scrap Sales 0.08 0.09
Income arising from government grant (Refer Note 47) - 17.79
Total 1,815.20 1,724.98
Rs. in mllllons
E e March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Other income
Interest income under the effective interest method on:

Interest income from banks and others 0.84 2.27
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 4.21 3.76
Miscellaneous income 3.49 2.24
Gains on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 3.40 1.22

Total 11.94 9.49
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Rs. in millions

Note 29
Cost of material consumed

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

A: Raw material consumed

Opening inventory 43.48 47.89
Add : Purchases (net) 116.54 114.15
160.02 162.04
Less: Closing inventory 58.25 43.48
Cost of raw materials consumed 101.77 118.56
B: Packing material consumed
Opening inventory 22.98 28.25
Add : Purchases (net) 39.42 38.06
62.40 66.31
Less: Closing inventory 27.70 22.98
Cost of packing materials consumed 34.70 43.33
Total 136.47 161.89
Rs. in millions
Note 30
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Changes in Inventory of finished goods, work in progress and traded goods S RO
Opening inventory
Finished goods 157.02 137.53
Work-in-process 38.09 47.75
Traded goods 74.34 113.91
269.45 299.19
Less: Closing inventory
Finished goods 123.61 157.02
Work-in-process 69.99 38.09
Traded goods 61.57 74.34
255.17 269.45
Decrease/(increase) in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 14.28 29.74
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Rs. in millions

ploesl March31,2019 | March 31,2018
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 289.70 303.84
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 44) 16.74 17.26
Employee share-based payment expenses (Refer Note 43) 0.14 0.45
Gratuity (Refer Note 44) 5.09 6.55
Staff welfare expenses 14.53 15.29
Total 326.20 343.39
Rs. in millions
flotCo2 March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Other expenses
Processing charges 4.80 8.39
Factory consumables 212.76 146.16
Power and fuel 103.69 101.54
Insurance 2.39 3.11
Repairs and maintenance 26.15 24.43
Rent 84,03 82.23
Rates and taxes 5.21 12.55
Freight 5.25 5.97
Advertisement & promotional materials 48.19 65.55
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 38.35 43.22
Commission on sales 39.83 40.11
Printing, stationery, postage and telephone expenses 2.59 2.59
Legal and professional fees 60.70 64.96
CSR Activity 2.82 -
Contractual Services 25.10 24,01
Payment to auditors (Refer Note below) 0.95 0.89
Commission to non-executive directors 1.30 0.80
Directors sitting fees 0.25 0.26
Provision for doubtful debts 4.06 3.79
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.10 1.49
Bad debts written off 0.52 0.18
Miscellaneous expenses 24,83 18.48
Total 693.87 650.71
Note : Payment to auditors
Rs. in millians
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Audit fees 0.80 0.80
Other services 0.07 0.08
Out of pocket expenses 0.08 0.01
Total 0.95 0.89

Note : Payment to auditors includes Rs. 0.15 million {March 31, 2018 : Rs. 0.89 million) paid to erstwhile auditors

Rs. in millions

Note 33

\
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o . March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 128.15 126.82
Amortisation of intangible asset 2.15 1.50
Total 130.30 128.32
Rs. in millions
Ly March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Finance cost
Interest on long-term borrowings measured at amortised cost (Refer Note below) 19.17 22.03
Interest on short-term borrowings measured at amortised cost (Refer Note below) 1.14 12.74
Other borrowing costs 15.63 16.04
Interest on liability component of compound financial instrument (Refer Note 17) 36.49 33.32
Fair valuation of financial guarantee contracts - 17.03
Total 72.43 101.16
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Rs. in millions

B s March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Tax expenses
Current tax expenses
Current tax on profits for the year 64.63 44.50
Change in estimate related to prior years 0.13 1.11
Total current tax expense 64.76 45.61
Deferred tax
Originating and reversal of temporary differences (22.36) (17.17)
Change in tax rate 20.88 (1.20)
Recognition of previously unrecognised carry forward losses . (30.25)
Change in estimate related to prior years 0.47 1.57
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (1.01) (47.05)
Total tax expenses 63.75 (1.44)
Rs. in millions
Tax income/(expenses) recognised in OCI March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations - (0.89)
Total tax expense - {0.89)
Rs. in millions
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Profit before income tax 243.41 148.99
Tax using Company's domestic tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2018 : 34.61%) 29.12% 70.88 34.61% 51.56
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating taxable
Weighted deduction on research and development expenditure -10.88% {(26.48) -22.01% (32.80)
Non deductible expenses 0.48% 1.17 0.02% 0.03
Recognition of previously unrecognised carry forward losses 0.00% ] -20.30% (30.25)
Change in estimate related to prior years 0.05% 0.13 1.80% 2,68
Change in tax rate 8.58% 20.87 -0.80% (1.20)
Other items -1.35% (3.29) 5.73% 8.54
Change in unrecognised deductible temprorary difference 0.19% 0.47 -
Effective tax rate 26.20% 63.75 -0.95% (1.44)
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Rs. in millions

M52 March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets {net)
Deferred tax assets on
Intangible assets 0.02 0.03
Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables 2.99 217
Provision - employee benefit 8.69 11.76
Unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses 165.94 274.36
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 159.53 94.91
Security deposits 1.25 297
Total deferred tax assets 338.42 386.20
Deferred tax liabilities on
Property, plant and equipment 74.04 99.92
Fair valuation of preference shares 40.02 60.77
Borrowings 2.16 431
Total deferred tax liabilities 116.22 165.00
Deferred tax assets - net 222.20 221.20

Significant estimates

In assessing the realisability of the minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit entitlements, management has assessed the utlisation of the MAT credit entitlement.
The ultimate utilisation of the MAT credit is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income greater than the book profit computed as per the
provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, before expiry of the credit period over which the MAT credit can be utilised. Management considers the scheduled
reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategy in making the assessment. Based on the historical details of the
taxable income, book profit and projections of future taxable income over the periods in which the MAT credit is available, management believes that the
Company will be able to realise / utilise the MAT credit. The amount of the MAT credit is considered realisable as at the reporting date, however, the
utilisation could be reduced in the near term if the future taxable income undergoes any change as compared to the estimates made by the management as at

reporting date.

Rs. in millions

Movement of deferred tax assets / Balance of Balance of Transferred to | Transferred to | Balance of deferred Balance of
liabilities deferred tax deferred tax statement of other tax asset as at March | Deferred tax
asset as at April | liability as at profit and loss | comprehensive 31,2019 liability as at
1,2018 April 1, 2018 income March 31, 2019
Allowance for doubtful debts - trade 217 - 0.82 - 2.99 -
receivables
Provision - employee benefit 11.76 - (3.06) (0.02) 8.68 .
Unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses 274.36 - (108.43) . 165.93 -
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 94.91 £ 64.63 = 159.54 =
Intangible assets 0.03 . (0.01) - 0.02 -
Property, plant and equipment . (99.92) 25.87 - - (74.05)
Security deposits 297 - (1.72) - 1.25 -
Fair valuation of preference shares (60.77) 20.75 - - (40.02)
Borrowings - (4.31) 2.15 - - {2.16)
Total 386.21 (165.00) 1.01 {0.02) 338.41 {116.23)
Rs. in millions
Movement of deferred tax assets / Balance of Balance of Transferred to | Transferred to | Balance of deferred Balance of
liabilities deferred tax deferred tax statement of other tax asset as at March | Deferred tax
asset as at April | liability as at profit and loss | comprehensive 31,2018 liability as at
1.2017 Anril 1. 2017 income March 31. 2018
Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receiva 0.84 - 1.33 - 2.17 -
Provision - employee benefit 11.15 - 1.50 (0.89) 11.76 -
Unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses 287.57 (13.21) - 274.36
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 50.29 = 44,62 - 94.91 -
Intangible assets 0.92 - (0.89) - 0.03
Property, plant and equipment - (98.23} (1.69) - - (99.92)
Deferred government grant 6.16 - (6.16) - -
Security deposits - 2.96 2.96 -
Fair valuation of preference shares - (71.72) 10.95 - - {60.77)
Fair valuation of financial guarantee (5.89) 5.89 {0.00)
Borrowings - (6.05) 1.74 - - (4.32)
Total 356.94 (181.88) 47.04 {0.88) 386.20 {165.00)
Rs. in millions
Note 37

Current tax assets/(liabilities) - (net)

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Current tax assets (net of provision)
Current tax liabilities {net of advance tax)

Total (net of advance tax)

. 2.30
(7.32) (12.81)
(7.32) (10.51)
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For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 38 : Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts as at March 31, 2019
Rs. in millions

Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
a) Sales tax 2.53 1.30
b) Service tax 0.11 0.11
c) Other matters including claims related to employees / ex employees etc. 1.75 1.75

1) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the
above as it is determinable only on receipt of judgement/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

2) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have any effect on
its financial position.

3) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated 28th February, 2019, relating to components/allowances
paid that need to be taken into account while computing an employer's contribution of provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds and
Miscellaneous Provident Act, 1952, The Company has also obtained a legal opinion on the matter and basis the same there is no material impact on the
financial statements as at 31 March 2019. The Company would record any further effect on its financial statements, on receiving additional clarity on the
subject.

4) Further, the Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and
disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of above proceeding
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

Note 39 : Capital and other commitments

Capital commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) Rs.22.60 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs.
38.97 millions).

B) Other commitments

The Company has imported certain machinery under the Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme and accordingly has an export obligation of
Rs.38.20 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs. Nil ). In this respect the Company has given bank guarantees of Rs. 6.56 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 6.74 millions)
to the Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) and Bond of Rs. 43.63 millions {March 31, 2018 : Rs. 44.68 millions) to the Commissioner of Customs. The
Export obligation has been fulfilled by making payment of customs duty during the year, the benefit of which was claimed under EPCG Scheme.

Unfulfilled export obligation
Year of issue Export obligation to be fulfilled As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
USD millions Rs. millions USD millions Rs. millions
2018-2019 2024-2025 0.54 38.20 -
0.54 38.20 - =

Note 40 : As a lessee in an operating lease
The Company has hired premises for manufacturing and research & development facility at different locations. The future minimum lease payment under
these lease as of March 31, 2019 is as follows :

Rs. in millions

Due within 12 months Due between 12-60 months Due beyond 60 months Total amount Due
Particulars as at March 31, as at March 31, as at March 31, as at March 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Minimum lease 34.75 79.92 14.02 45.55 37.97 41.19 86.74 166.66
payments

Lease rent debited to statement of profit and loss is Rs.83.86 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 82.17 millions).
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Note 41 : Assets pledged as securlty

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

Rs. in millions

Particulars Notes March 31, 2019]  March 31, 2018
Current
FInancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12 169.18 23.33
Trade receivables 11 163.62 143.75
Non-financlal assets
Inventories 10 349.73 361.21
Total current assets pledged as securlty 682.53 528.29
Non current
Financlal assets
Deposits with banks 8,13 8.77 5.99
Non-flnanclal assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 565.03 613.21
Intangible assets 5 2,75 3.66
Capital work-in-progress 4 33,99 -
Intangible assets under development 3 26.14
Total non current assets pledged as security 636.68 622.86
Total assets pledged as security 1,319.21 1,151.15
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Note 42 : Earnings per share

per share

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Basic earnings per share
A. Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. in millions) 179.66 150.43
B. Weighted average number of equity shares 5,511,365 5,511,365
Basis earning per share (Rs.) (A/B) 32.60 27.29
Diluted earnings per share
C. Adjusted net profit/(loss) for the year (Rs. in millions) 203.52 172.22
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 5,511,365 5,511,365
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares 11,000,000 11,000,000
D. Weighted average number of equity share (diluted) for the year 16,511,365 16,511,365
Diluted earnings per share { Rs. ) {C/D) 12.33 10.43
Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Note: Reconciliations of earnings used for calculating diluted earnings per share

Rs. in millions
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic earnings per 179.66 150.43
share:
Interest expense on optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (net of tax) 23.86 21.79
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used for calculating diluted earnings 203.52 172.22
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Note 43 : Employees stock option plan

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Holding Company's Employees Stock Option Plan (“Emcure ESOS 2013")

- including any market performance conditions

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions, and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

In the given case all options are issued by the Holding Company. The Company does not have an obligation to settle these share based payment
transactions, therefore these options are treated as equity settled transactions. Expense is recognised over the vesting period with corresponding

increase in other equity.

Summary of options granted under the plan:

Particulars Tranche - 1

Exercise Price March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Date of grant October 01, 2013
Opening balance 221* 90,000 90,000
Grant during the year -
Adjustment for bonus Issue* 221* -
Cancelled during the year 221*
Exercised during the year 221* - -
Closing balance 221* 90,000 90,000

Exercisable

*During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company had issued bonus shares to its shareholders in the ratio of 3:1. Correspondingly,
proportionate adjustment has been made by increasing the number of options granted and reducing exercise price per option. Board of directors
vide resolution dated January 29, 2016 has approved the adjustments to options granted.

No options expired during the periods covered in the above table.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

Grant Date Exercise Share option Number of share Exercise Share option Number of share
price {Rs.) March 31, options March 31, price (Rs.) March 31, options March 31,
2019 2019 2018 2018

October 1, 2013 221 90,000 221 90,000
Wefghted average remaining contractual life of 7 Vears 8 Years
options
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Rs. in millions
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Employee share-based payment 0.14 0.45
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Note 44 ; Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plans
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic

salary as per local regulations. The contributions are made to provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is
limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Contributions are made to employees family pension fund in India for employees as per local regulations. The contributions are made to provident
fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or any
constructive obligation.

Defined contribution plans: The Company has recognised the following amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
Rs. in millions

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Contribution to employees provident fund 10.92 10.70

Contribution to employees family pension fund 4.65 5.29
Total 15.57 15.99

b) Post-employment obligations

Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period

of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company
makes contributions to fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. Contributions are made as per the demands by Life Insurance

Corporation of India.
These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk, etc.

¢) Defined benefit plans
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit plan over the year are as follows:
Rs. in millions

Particulars Present value of Fair value of plan assets Total
obligation
As at April 1, 2017 32,01 (20.79) 11.22
Current service cost 5.72 . 5.72
Interest expenses/(income) 2.19 (1.59) 0.60
Mortality charges and taxes - 0.23 0.23
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7.91 (1.36) 6.55
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest - (0.29}) (0.29)
expense/(income)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - -
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (1.63) - {1.63)
Experience (gains)/losses (0.63) - (0.63)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (2.26) (0.29) {2.55)
Employer contribution - (5.18) (5.18)
Benefit payments (1.36) 1.36 -
As at March 31, 2018 36.30 {26.26) 10.04
Current service cost 5.71 - 5.71
Interest expenses/(income) 2.69 (2.40) 0.29
Impact of Transfer (in) / out (0.99) (0.16) (1.15)
Mortality charges and taxes - 0.24 0.24
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7.41 (2.32) 5.09
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest - (0.18) (0.18)
expense/(income)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 0.42 - 0.42
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions - -
Experience (gains)/losses (0.19) - {0.19)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 0.23 (0.18) 0.05
Employer contribution - (10.21) (10.21)
Benefit payments (0.75) 0.75 -
As at March 31, 2019 N 43.19 (38.22) 4.97

\)
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Note 44 : Assets and llabilities relating to employee benefits (continued)

d) The net llabllity disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

Rs. in millions
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Present value of obligation 43.19 36.30
Fair value of plan assets (38.22) (26.26)
Deficit of funded plan 4.97 10.04

The Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one off contributions.
The Company intends to continue to contribute the defined benefit plans as per the demand from Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Principle actuarial assumptions as at the reporting date

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Discount rate 7.70% 7.70%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.70% 7.00%
Salary escalation rate 8.00% 8.00%

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors.
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Note 44 : Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits (continued)

e) Sensitivity analysis: Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, Holding other assumptions constant, would
have affected the defined benefit obligations by the amounts shown below.

f

[

h

)

=

Rs. in millions

Change in assumption

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Particulars Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 1.0% 1.0% (2.67) (2.11) 3.01 2.37
Salary escalation rate 1.0% 1.0% 2.55 1.99 (2.31) (1.81)
Withdrawal rate 1.0% 1.0% (0.09) (0.08) 0.10 0.08

Assumptions regarding future mortality for gratuity benefit is set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience in the domicile
country of the Company.

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this
yield, this will create a deficit. All assets are maintained with fund managed by LIC of India.

Asset volatility :

Changes in bond yields: A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities
especially unexpected salary increases provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this
increasing risk.

Future salary escalation and inflation
risk :

Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration with the defined benefit liabilities, the Company
is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence Company is encouraged to adopt asset-liability management.

The Company's assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by public sector insurance Company via, LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign guarantee and has been
providing consistent and competitive returns over the years.

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

The Company has agreed that it will aim to eliminate the deficit in gratuity plan over the years. Funding levels are assessed by LIC on annual basis and the
Company makes contribution as per the instructions received from LIC. The Company compares the expected contribution to the plan as provided by actuary with
the instruction from LIC and assesses whether any additional contribution may be required. The Company considers the future expected contribution will not be
significantly increased as compared to actual contribution.

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2019 is Rs. 5.00 millions, (March 31, 2018 is Rs.10.00 milions.)

The weighted average duration is 9.2 years (March 31, 2018 : 7.73 years). The following benefits payments, for each of the next five years and the aggregate five
years thereafter, are expected to be paid:

Rs. in millions
2-!

Particulars Less than 1 year | between 1-2 years be“:::r: d over 5 years Total
March 31, 2019 4.21 7.43 17.08 41.59 70.31
March 31, 2018 4.80 4.42 17.16 33.12 59.50
Major categories of plan assets are as follows :

Rs. in millions

Particulars Arnguiotet
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Investment funds
Insurance funds (LIC pension and group schemes fund) 38.22 100% 26.26 100%

Total 38.22 100% 26.26 100%

The category wise details of the plan assets is not available as it's maintained by LIC.
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Note 45 : Segmental reporting
The Company has identified “Pharmaceuticals” as the only primary reportable segment.

Secondary segment {By geographical segment}

Rs. in millions

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Sales

India 1,687.77 1,653.96

Outside India 83.93 2834
Sub Total (A) 1,771.70 1,682.30
Service Income

India 43,50 42,68

Outside India = =
Sub Total (B) 43.50 42.68
Total {A+B) 1,815.20 1,724.98

The company has 1 customer which accounts for more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company.

All non-current assets of the Company are located in India country of domicile.

Note 46 : Information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
The information regarding Micro Enterprises and Small Enterproses has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on

the basis of Infermation available with the Ctmpany, This has been refied upon by the auditors.

Partlculars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at

the end of each accounting year . -
i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made

to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but

without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

Development Act, 2006.

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting

vear. 0.08 -
v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small

enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23

of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

Total 0.74 =

Note 47 : Government grant

Government grants are related to exemption of basic customs duty on purchase of imported machineries to be used for the manufacturing of
products. The Company is required to fulfil the export obligation against duty benefit received. Refer Note 39 for the details of unfufilled
obligations. Based on past experience, management is confident that it will fulfil conditions attached to the grant received.

Note 48 : Expendlture on Research and Development during the year

Revenue expenditure incurred on Research and Development including in house Research & Development is Rs. 217.85 millions {March 31,
2018 : Rs. 216.99 millions). Capital expenditure in relation to acquisition of fixed assets, incurred on Research and Development including in
house Research and Development is Rs. 43.03 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 49.70 millions).

Note 49 ; Information about indlvidual provisions and signlificant estimates

Sales returns and breakage explry

When a customer has a right to return the product within a given period, the Company has recognised a provision for returns. The provision is
measured equal to the value of the sales expected to return in the future period. Revenue is adjusted for the expected value of the returns
and cost of sales are adjusted for the value of the corresponding goods to be returned.

The Company has a constructive obligation to replace the goods which will expire. The Company has recognised a provision for the returns due
to expiry. The provision is measured on the basis of historical trend of expiry against the sales occurred in the current and earlier period.
Management considers the sales value for the periods which are equivalent to average general shelf life of products, Revenue is adjusted for
the expected value of the returns,

Significant estimates

The Company has constructive obligation to accept the returns and expired products after sales to customers, Management estimates the
related provision for future expected returns based on historical information as well as recent trends and change in business conditions that
might suggest that past information may differ from future claims. The assumptions made in relation to the current period are consistent with
those in the prior years, Factors that could impact the estimated return include pattern of return and success of new products launched,
Company's marketing initiatives, shelf life of products, Where the expected value of returns and expiry changes by 5% from the management's
estimate, the provisions for return and expiry will be higher or lower by Rs. 2.68 millions (March 31, 2018 - Rs. 2.77 millions).

™M t in other pr
Rs. in millions
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance at beginning of the year 53.13 51.07
Provisions made during the year 101.34 101.87
Provisions utilised during the year (100.90) (99.81)
Total 53.57 53.13
Current 31.49 33,60
Non-current 22.08 19.53

-
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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Note 50 : Related party disclosure
i) Related parties with whom there were transactions during the year and nature of relationship

Holding Company
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
Zuventus Healthcare Limited
Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda

Key Management Personnel

Executive Directors
Dr. Sanjay Singh

Non - Executive Directors

Mr, Satish Mehta

Mr. Sunil Mehta

Mr. Shreekant Bapat

Dr. Girish Telang (upto September 12, 2018)
Mr. Gyan Chandra Mishra

Mr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly

Mr. Hitesh Jain (from September 11, 2018)

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have significant influence:
H.M. Sales Corporation
Juris Corp.

Relative of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Rutav Mehta

i) Transactions with related parties:
Rs. in millions
Sr. |Description of the nature of transaction / balance Transaction value Balance outstanding as at
No. during March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

2018-19 2017-18 Receivable | Payable / | Receivable | Payable /
/ Advance | Advance | /Advance | Advance
from from from from
customer | supplier customer supplier

1) |Sale of goods & services
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 195.10 174.03 - -
Zuventus Healthcare Limited 41.98 33,12 - -

2) |Sale of Assets
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.02 - = = =

3) |Purchase of goods
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 189.08 181.59 - -

4) |Purchase of assets
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 3.73 051 - -

5) |Security deposit given
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited - . 14.86 - 13.27

6) |Expenses paid

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 11.54 11.72 = - 0.30 -

H.M. Sales Corporation 3.44 3.22 - 0.67 . 0.82

Juris Corp. 1.59 - - - -
7} |Rent paid

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 31.80 31.80 . - .

8) |Reimbursement of expenses made
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited = 0.25 - -
H.M. Sales Corporation - 0.00 -
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 50 : Related party disclosure (continued)
Rs. in mlllions

Sr. |Description of the nature Transaction value Balance outstanding as at
No. during March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
2018-19 2017-18 | Receivable | Payable /| Recelvable | Payable /
/ Advance | Advance | /Advance | Advance
from from from from
customer supplier customer supplier
9) |Corporate guarantee commission paid
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 3.55 4.90 - - - -
10) |Issue of share options
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.14 0.45 5.51 - 5.37 s
11) |Interest expense on debt component of compound
financial instrument
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 6.63 7.06 - 91.97 - 85.33
Zuventus Healthcare Limited 29.85 26.26 - 320.61 . 290.76
12) | Amortisation of financial guarantee
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited . 17.03 - =
13} | Amortisation of deferred rent
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 1.30 1.30 0.37 = 1.67
14) [Unwinding of security deposit
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 1.59 1.42 - - .
15) |Remuneration paid
Key Managerial Personnel
Dr. Sanjay Singh 40.58 38.16 - 487 - 4.34
16) |Remuneration paid
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Rutav Mehta - 0.34 - - . -
17) |Post-employment obligations
Key Managerial Personnel
Dr. Sanjay Singh N 1.61 1.14 - 9.86 - 8.26
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Rutav Mehta - - - - .
18) |Compensated absences provisions
Key Managerial Personnel
Dr. Sanjay Singh 0.37 0.20 - 4,74 - 4.37
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Rutav Mehta - - - - - -
19) [Commission paid - non whole time directors
Mr. Shreekant Bapat 0.20 0.20 - 0.20 - 0.20
Dr. Girish Telang - 0.20 - - - 0.20
Mr. Gyan Chandra Mishra 0.50 0.20 e 0.50 - 0.20
Mr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly 0.50 0.20 - 0.50 - 0.20
Mr. Hitesh Jain 0.10 - 0.10 - -
20} |Sitting fees - non whole time directors
Mr. Shreekant Bapat 0.13 0.13 - - - -
Dr. Girish Telang 0.03 0.09 - B - -
Mr. Gyan Chandra Mishra 0.05 0.02 = - - -
Mr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly 0.02 0.02 - - -
Mr. Hitesh Jain 0.02 - - - - -

All transactions with the related parties are priced on an arm's length basis and resulting outstanding balances are to be settled in cash within
one to six months of the reporting date.
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Notes to the fl lal (c
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 51 : Revenue from contract with customer

Rs. In millions

Particulars March 31, 2019
Revenue recognised from contracts with customers

Disaggregation of revenue

Sale of products 1,769.16
Sale of services 43.50
Other operating revenue 2.54
Total 1,815.20
Based on markets

Within India 1,731.27
Qutside Indla- 83.93
a, Asia 58.46
b, South America 2547
[Total 1,815.20
Detalls of bal

Partlculars 31 March 2019

Opening balance of receivables
Closing balance of receivables

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the period

Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations

satisfied {or partially satisfied) in previous periads

143.75
163.62

16.71

There is no significant change in the contract asset and contract liabilities.

Performance obligatlons

The Company satisfies its performance obligations pertaining to the sale of goods at point in time when the control of goods s actually transferred to the customers. No significant
judgment is involved in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goods. The contract is a fixed price contract subject to refund due to returns and do not contain any
financing component. The payment is generally due within 7-180 days. The Company is obliged for returns/refunds due to expiry & saleable returns. There are no other significant

obligations attached in the contract with customer.

There is no significant judgement involve in ascertaining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligation and in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goods.
The transaction price is ascertained and allocated to the performance obligations based on the standalone price of individual performance obligation.

The transaction price ascertained for the only performance obligation of the Company (i.e. Sale of goods) is agreed in the contract with the customer. There is no variable

consideration involved in the transaction price.

Reconclllation of contract price with r recognised In st of profit and loss:

Particulars 31 March 2019
Contract price 1,916.20
Less:

Ameunt recognised as returns 59.16
Armoint recognised as expiry 41.84
Revenue recegnised in statement of profit and loss 1,815.20

52




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 52 : Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholder's and benefits for other stakeholder's, and

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholder's, return capital to shareholder's
or issue new shares.

Generally consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalent's}
divided by
Total equity (as shown in the balance sheet).

The Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio less than 1.75x, which is acceptable under bank norms. The gearing ratio at year end is as follows:

Rs. in millions

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Net Debt 425.79 662.11
Equity attributable to owners of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited 858.29 678.54
Net Debt to Equity ratio 0.50 0.98

Note 53 : Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks which results from the Company’s operating and investing activities. The Company’s risk management
is carried out by central treasury department in under guidance of the board of directors and the core management team of the Company, and it focuses on
actively ensuring the minimal impact of Company's financial position.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis Diversification of bank deposits, credit
receivables, financial assets measured at  |Credit ratings limits and letters of credit
amortised cost.

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other financial liabilities  |Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines

and borrowing facilities

Market risk - foreign exchange Future commercial transactions Cash flow forecasting Effective management of foreign
Sensitivity analysis exchange outflow and inflow
Recognised financial assets and liabilities
not denominated in Indian rupee (Rs.)

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Ongoing review of existing borrowing
rates and seeking for new facilities at
lower rate

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and other financial assets. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.
The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other
receivables.

Other financial assets that are potentially subject to credit risk consists of cash equivalents, inter corporate loans and deposits.

Further, the Company also recognises loss allowance by using a provision matrix based on historical credit loss experience wherein fixed provision rates are
defined for each financial asset which is past due / not due. The Company depending on the diversity of its asset base, uses appropriate groupings if the
historical credit loss experience shows significant different loss patterns for different customer segments / financial assets.

Also, the Company limits its exposure to credit risk from receivables by establishing a maximum payment period for customers.
The Company considers the recoverability from financial assets on regular intervals so that such financial assets are received within the due dates.
The Company has exposure to credit risk which is limited to carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the date of Balance sheet.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 53 : Financial risk management (continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are usually due within 7-180 days. Generally, and by practice significant domestic customers enjoy a credit period of approximately 7-45
days and for export customers, the credit period ranges from 30 to 180 days. The receivables are not interest bearing, which is the normal industry practice.
All trade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure except for receivables from government agencies and related parties. However, the Company does
not identify specific concentration of credit risk with regard to trade receivables, as the amounts recognized represent a large number of receivables from
various customers. Further, majority of the receivables pertains to receivables from Subsidiaries, wherein the concentration of credit risk is considered to be
low. Certain receivables are also backed by letter of credit from the banks, resulting into negligible credit risk in recovery of such receivables.

The Company uses a provision matrix (simplified approach) to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivables and other financial assets measured at

amortised cost.

Year ended March 31, 2019:

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Rs. in millions

Ageing Not Due 0-90 days | 91-180 days [181-270 days past| 271-360 days |More than 361 days Total
past dues past dues dues past dues past dues

Gross carrying amount 100.04 22,04 6.28 36.68 1.23 7.63 173.90
Expected loss rate (includes -1.91% -2.78% -15.12% -1.64% -51.85% -73.00% -5.91%
interest as well as credit loss)
Expected credit losses (loss (1.91) (0.61) (0.95) (0.60) (0.64) (5.57) (10.28)
allowance provision)
Carrying amount of trade 98.13 21.43 5.33 36.08 0.59 2.06 163.62
receivables (net of loss
allowance)
Year ended March 31, 2018:
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach

Rs. in millions
Ageing Not Due 0-90 days | 91-180 days |181-270 days past| 271-360 days |More than 361 days Total

past dues past dues dues past dues past dues

Gross carrying amount 111.17 28.03 0.48 5.60 0.16 4.53 149.97
Expected loss rate (includes -1.76% -1.51% -10.15% -2.15% -29.02% -80.09% -4.15%
interest as well as credit loss)
Expected credit losses (loss (1.95) (0.42) {0.05) (0.12) (0.05) (3.63) (6.22)
allowance provision)
Carrying amount of trade 109.22 27.61 0.43 5.48 0.11 0.90 143.75
receivables (net of loss
allowance)

During the period, the Company made write-offs of trade receivables amounting to Rs. 0.52 millions (March 31, 2018 : Rs. 0.18 millions).
There are no financial assets which have been written off during the year which are subject to enforcement activity.

Reconclliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables

Particulars Rs. in millions

Loss allowance on April 1, 2017 2.43
Amounts written off (0.18)
Net remeasurement of loss allowances 3.97
Loss allowance on March 31, 2018 6.22
Amounts written off (0.52)
Net remeasurement of loss allowances 4.58
Loss allowance on March 31, 2019 10.28

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks:
With respect to the cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, the concentration of credit risk is negligible as these are kept with the reputed

banks with very high credit worthiness.
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Note 53 : Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and availability of funds through adequate amount of committed credit facility to meet the
commitments arising out of financial liabilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Company maintains fiexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit lines. In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet future requirements, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against debt covenants and
maintaining debt financing plans and ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements.

The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt payments as well as cash requirement for day-to-day business. Liquidity
needs are monitored regularly as well as on the basis of a 30-day cash flow projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a period from 180 to 360 days period
are identified and reviewed at regular intervals.

The Company maintains cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements. Funding in regards to long-term liquidity needs is additionally

secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

i) Financing arrangements
The Company has access to undrawn borrowing facilities including overdraft facility at the end of the reporting period.

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice subject to the continuance of satisfactory
credit ratings.

ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Rs. in millions

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities within 1 year 1to 2 years More than 2 years Total
March 31, 2019
Trade payable 110.14 - - 110.14
Current borrowings - = - -
Borrowings 74.72 56.89 538.37 669.98
Other financial liabilities 94.49 - - 94.49
Total 279.35 56.89 538.37 874.61
March 31, 2018
Trade payable 129.69 - - 129.69
Current borrowings 0.71 - - 0.71
Borrowings 65.25 55.57 563.90 684.72
Trade deposits - - - -
Other financial liabilities 79.88 . - 79.88
Total 275.53 55.57 563.90 895.00
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 53 : Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of it's
Holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

Foreign currency risk
The Company operates majorly in local currency wherein majority of its purchases and sales & services are done in local currencies with minimal exposure
to foreign currency risk. Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities expressed in Rs. as at the closing are as follows:

Foreign currency risk exposure:
Rs. in millions

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Particulars Currency = -
Foreign Currency | Local Currency | Foreign Currency | Local Currency
Financial assets
Trade receivables usD 0.54 37.81 0.08 5.13
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets) 0.54 37.81 0.08 5.13
Financial liabilities
Trade Payable Euro 0.02 1.41 0.01 0.47
UsD 0.44 30.79 0.15 9.79
JPY 0.00 0.10 = =
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) 0.46 32.30 0.16 10.26

Sensitivity analysis:
Rs. in millions

Impact on profit before tax
Particulars {Income)/Expense

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

USD sensitivity
Rs./USD-Increase by 4% (March 31, 2018-4%)* 0.28 (0.19)

Rs./USD-Decrease by 4% (March 31, 2018-4%)* (0.28) 0.19

* Holding all other variables constant

Interest rate risk exposure
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to interest rate risk. During March 31, 2019
and March 31, 2018, the Company's borrowings at variable rate were in INR.

a) Interest rate risk exposure

b

~

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to interest rate risk. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

As a part of Company's interest risk management policy, treasury department closely tracks the base interest rate movements on regular basis. Based on
regular review, management assesses the need to enter into interest rate swaps, contracts to hedge foreign currency risk. Management reviews the future
movement in base rate against different factors such as overall micro and macro economic factors, liquidity in the system, expected spending cycle. Further
on regular basis management assess the possibility of entering into new facilities which would reduce the future finance cost which helps management to
mitigate the risk related to interest rate movement.

All the borrowing are at floating rate. Refer note 18.

Sensitivity:
The Company's policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on borrowing. The local currency loans are linked to Bank Base Rate/ Marginal
Cost of Funds Based Lending (MCLR).

Rs. in millions

Impact on profit before tax
Particulars (Income)/Expense
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Interest rates — increase by 25 basis points (25 bps) * 0.29 (0.36)

Interest rates — decrease by 25 basis points (25 bps) * (0.29) 0.36

* Holding al! other variables constant
Further, there are certain Rupee loans which have fixed interest rates, accordingly, interest sensitivity is not carried on these loans.

The bank deposits are placed on fixed rate of interest of approximately 6% to 8.50%. As the interest rate does not vary unless such deposits are withdrawn
and renewed, sensitivity analysis is not performed.
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2019

Note No. 55 - Derivatives
a) Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date:

In Millions
As at
Particulars Currency
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Foreign Local Currency Foreign Local Currency
Currency Currency

Trade Receivables usD 0.54 37.81 0.08 5.13
Payables Euro 0.02 1.41 0.01 0.47
usb 0.44 30.79 0.15 9.79

GBP 0.00 0.10 - -

Note 56 : Specified bank notes (SBNs)
The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 has not been made in

these financial statements, since the requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Note No. 57 Corporate
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR

activities are promoting education, healthcare and ensuring environmental sustainability. Amount spent during the year on activities which are
specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013 are as mentioned below :

a) Gross amount of Rs. 3.04 millions (March 31, 2018 Rs.0.26 millions) required to be spent by the Company during the year.

b) Amount spent during the year on: Rs. in Millions
Particulars Paid ] Yet to be paid | Total Paid | Yet to be paid I Total
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - - -

{ii) On purposes other than (i) above 2.82 - 2.82 - - -

Note 58 : Prior year comparatives
Prior year comparative have been regrouped / reclassed wherever necessary to confirm with current year's classification.

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement.
As per our report of even date attached.
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